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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: This is the

          3  hearing of the Committee on Finance jointly with the

          4  Committee on Youth Services of the New York City

          5  Council. My name is Ken Fisher, I am joined by

          6  Council Member Rodriguez, Council Member Annette

          7  Robinson, who is Chair of our Juvenile Justice

          8  Subcommittee. Council Members Perkins, Clarke and

          9  Lopez, and Berman have also been here. Some of them

         10  are next door meeting with a group of young people

         11  who came down to City Hall today to share their

         12  perspectives with us as well.

         13                 This portion of the hearing will deal

         14  with the Department of Juvenile Justice of the City

         15  of New York, which is basically the agency that

         16  administers the correctional component of Youth

         17  Services in various forms for young people.

         18                 Let me now turn to the chair of our

         19  Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice, Council Member

         20  Robinson, and I will ask her if she would then

         21  introduce the Commissioner and we could proceed with

         22  the testimony.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you very

         24  much, Chairman Fisher.

         25                 Good morning, ladies and gentlemen,
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          2  and welcome to today's joint hearing of the Finance

          3  Committee and the Committee on Youth Services and

          4  the Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice. Today we will

          5  discuss the Mayor's Executive Budget for the Fiscal

          6  Year 2000 for the Department of Youth and Community

          7  Development, and the Department of Juvenile Justice.

          8                 As the Chairperson of the

          9  Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice, I am actively

         10  involved in all matters pertaining to juvenile

         11  justice, which includes keeping a watchful eye over

         12  New York City's juvenile detention center.

         13                 In scrutinizing the budget, I am

         14  concerned about the plan to reopen the Spofford

         15  facility where the intends to spend an additional $6

         16  million. Several months ago we held a hearing in the

         17  Bronx where we heard the people of the Bronx voice

         18  their opposition to this plan. We also heard of

         19  plans within this Administration to consider

         20  building a new secure detention facility, at a time

         21  when we are experiencing a decline in all crime.

         22                 The population at the secure juvenile

         23  facility is rising. There is no reason for this.

         24  What the City needs is more non-secure detention

         25  facilities and a serious budgetary commitment to put

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  more resources into programs that will prevent

          3  children from getting into trouble.

          4                 We need more money for preventative

          5  programs, such as RCV, or Reduced Children's

          6  Violence, and Alternative to Detention Programs.

          7                 The Administration's budget calls for

          8  over $20 million in Youth Service cuts, yet they

          9  propose to spend $6 million to improve Spofford.

         10  This tells our children that we do not care about

         11  them. This is not the message that we want to send

         12  to our children.

         13                 New York City's young people are the

         14  most valuable natural resources of this City and

         15  they need to be nurtured, taught and protected,

         16  especially when they have made mistakes in their

         17  young lives.

         18                 This morning we have with us the

         19  Committee, Council Member Stabile, Council Member

         20  Perkins, our Counsel, Jose Orengo, of course,

         21  Council Member Fisher, the Chairman of Youth

         22  Services, Latania Scott and Council Member Clarke,

         23  members of this Committee.

         24                 Now I would like to introduce

         25  Commissioner Tino Hernandez, and ask him to proceed
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          2  with his testimony, and please introduce those

          3  persons who are accompanying you.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you,

          5  Chairwoman.

          6                 Good afternoon, Chairman Fisher,

          7  Chairwoman Robinson of the Juvenile Justice

          8  Subcommittee and other honorable members of the

          9  Youth Services and budget committees.

         10                 I am Tino Hernandez, the Commissioner

         11  of the Department of Juvenile Justice. On my left is

         12  Doug Appel, who is the Deputy Commissioner of

         13  Administration and serves as chief financial officer

         14  for the agency. On my right is Crystal Monje, who is

         15  Assistant Commissioner of Detention and Operation

         16  Services for the Department.

         17                 Since I have testified recently

         18  before you, I will keep my testimony brief in order

         19  to address any questions that you may have.

         20                 The Mayor's Executive Budget for

         21  Fiscal Year 2000 provides DJJ with a significant

         22  increase in resources to meet our critical detention

         23  capacity requirements and to accomplish our mission

         24  of providing safe and humane detention services

         25  related to both custody and care.
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          2                 Specifically the Fiscal Year 2000

          3  Executive Budget recognizes the need to expand the

          4  number of non-secure detention beds by adding $3

          5  million to the Department's budget to allow us to

          6  contract for 36 additional non-secure group home

          7  beds. These funds will allow DJJ to expand NSD

          8  capacity to approximately 150 beds from the current

          9  level of 115.

         10                 We are working to have these new

         11  homes operational during the summer, upcoming summer

         12  months. As you know, the Capital Budget also

         13  provides for $7.7 million for the renovation of the

         14  three wings in the Spofford building to replace the

         15  100 beds currently being used at the Vernon C. Bain

         16  Center. The Executive Budget provides DJJ with an

         17  additional 83 positions to properly manage the

         18  Spofford Building for intake and admissions and to

         19  house youth awaiting transfer to safe facilities.

         20                 The Fiscal Year 2000 budget also

         21  calls for 700,000 in overtime savings. The

         22  Department can confidently achieve these savings

         23  through the implementation of various management

         24  improvements aimed at consolidating planned

         25  operational posts in the secure detention facility.
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          2                 This change will not affect security,

          3  safety or services in our facility.

          4                 Our success in controlling overtime

          5  is evident in the trends that we have observed so

          6  far this Fiscal Year. The overtime spending rate in

          7  March was 32 percent below the July rate. Further, I

          8  expect to end this Fiscal Year below last year's

          9  overtime total.

         10                 Before takin budget-related questions

         11  from the Council, I would like to update you on some

         12  DJJ programmatic improvements. It is important for

         13  DJJ to provide youth in custody with high quality

         14  services to ensure a safe living environment, as

         15  well as to positively intervene with residents

         16  before they leave our care.

         17                 Over the next year we will make

         18  several service enhancements through internal

         19  management improvements, additional city funding and

         20  grant funding opportunities, federal grant funding

         21  opportunities.

         22                 In total, the following initiatives,

         23  plus those previously implemented last year will

         24  provide us with over 3.4 million in service

         25  enhancements.
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          2                 DJJ has received funding to expand

          3  Project Confirm, which as of this week is operating

          4  Citywide. As you may remember, Project Confirm is an

          5  interagency collaboration with ACS which targets

          6  foster care youth with low level charges who would

          7  otherwise be eligible to go home, but remain in

          8  detention due to the absence of a guardian at

          9  detention or in court.

         10                 The Department of Probation, through

         11  the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice Coordinator

         12  has secured funding to collaborate with us to

         13  institute a joint intake process. This collaboration

         14  will create a more rational way for determining the

         15  appropriateness of detention, reaching parents and

         16  expediting needs assessment.

         17                 Two grants totalling $400,000 will

         18  enable the Department to expand its health and

         19  mental health services beyond the enhancements

         20  included in the January Plan. One grant will focus

         21  on health promotion and education for residents, and

         22  the other will provide mental health services to

         23  address behavioral disorders associated with

         24  violence, traumatization and victimization.

         25                 Contractors are currently being
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          2  selected to execute new initiatives.

          3                 As I announced at previous hearings,

          4  the Department has also received $125,000 to develop

          5  a family strengthening component to our after care

          6  program. This program enhancement will allow DJJ to

          7  provide family interaction skills, workshops and

          8  remediation counseling to aftercare clients and

          9  their parents.

         10                 Lastly, DJJ will implement a

         11  community-based transition program thanks to a grant

         12  for approximately $700,000 a year. This new

         13  initiative will focus on preparing some of the youth

         14  in detention for returning back to communities upon

         15  release.

         16                 This program will be designed to hold

         17  youth accountable for their actions while linking

         18  them to support services to facilitate their

         19  adjustment back to their communities.

         20                 As you can see, the Fiscal Year 2000

         21  Executive Budget, along with the aforementioned

         22  grant, provides DJJ with the necessary funding for

         23  both secure and non-secure capacity, as well as

         24  expanded and enhanced youth-oriented services.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We have been
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          2  joined by Council Member Stabile from Queens. And

          3  also Council Member Leffler from Queens, the Chair

          4  of our Public Safety Committee.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you very

          6  much, Commissioner Hernandez. I see that you have

          7  addressed some of the questions that I was going to

          8  propose, but since you have addressed those, I will

          9  address some others to you.

         10                 And thank you for your testimony as

         11  well. Certainly, Commissioner, I am kind of

         12  overwhelmed just listening to the testimony from the

         13  Youth Services and then to hear the testimony of the

         14  Department of Juvenile Justice, and it sounds like

         15  it is a lot of good news for the agency, it is not a

         16  lot of good news for the young people, because it

         17  seems as though we propose to lock up, instead of

         18  educating and lifting up, and I am concerned about

         19  that. But I am not going to ask all of my questions

         20  now, I am going to go to my colleagues so they can

         21  begin with their questions.

         22                 Council Member Rodriguez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That was

         24  quick.

         25                 Okay, we have gone through this
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          2  before and we are going to go through it again.

          3                 Reduced Children's Violence Program

          4  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Speak directly

          6  into the mic.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The Reduced

          8  Children's Violence Program, it says here you are

          9  looking to eliminate that program; am I correct?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Yes,

         11  Councilman. The budget does show that the six

         12  positions in that program are not included.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Can you

         14  tell me the reasoning behind trying to reduce that

         15  program?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL:

         17  Councilman, as you know, during the year agencies

         18  are asked to come up with ideas to reduce their

         19  budget. We know our budget is very much based upon

         20  services we provide to youth in detention.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Speak directly

         22  into the mic, please, because it is not coming

         23  direct.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Sure, of

         25  course.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: You also

          4  know, Councilman that during the year, the Mayor

          5  proposes the budget and then over the course of the

          6  month that budget will be discussed with the Council

          7  and the Council will ultimately adopt the budget.

          8  So, it gives you a sense of the process and the

          9  reasoning behind our decisions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I am

         11  assuming that the budget that you proposed is the

         12  budget that you want to pass. I am assuming that the

         13  budget that you give us is the one that you think is

         14  the one that works best for the City of New York. Am

         15  I misunderstanding that?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: I guess

         17  the way I would say it would be slightly different.

         18  What I would say is that during the course of the

         19  year agencies are asked to come up with reductions.

         20  We are given direction to develop reduction

         21  programs. As you can see in our budget we have

         22  developed a series of them that don't just address

         23  issues in RCV. I understand your interest in those

         24  programs but we have also come up with very

         25  innovative budget reductions in secure detention so
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          2  that we can provide the same level of service at a

          3  lower cost. So, during the course of that year we

          4  have come up with a series of proposals to reduce

          5  the budget, we make that proposal to the

          6  Council in the form of the Mayor's Executive Budget,

          7  and then as you know, between now and whenever that

          8  budget is adopted, there will be a back and forth

          9  discussion.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: How much

         11  was it that you cut from RCV, do you know?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: I believe

         13  it was 166,000.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Do you know

         15  what percentage of that is the total budget?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Off the

         17  top of my head, it is well under one percent.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Probably

         19  well under one-tenth of one percent.

         20                 This is a program whose purpose is to

         21  prevent children from going to your detention

         22  facilities. This is a program whose purpose it is to

         23  make sure that the children in our City have the

         24  ability at least to, you know, maybe one or two or

         25  three or whatever the number is, get some kind of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  help to prevent them from winding up in your

          3  facilities.

          4                 Can you tell me how much it costs to

          5  keep one child in detention for one year?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: A lot of

          7  money.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: What is the

          9  number?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Well over

         11  $65,000.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Sixty-five

         13  thousand dollars. So, let's see if I can get this

         14  right. I am going to count, six times three, that is

         15  about two and a half detainees is the impact that we

         16  are talking about.

         17                 How many children were serviced by

         18  this program last year?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: About 300.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The numbers

         21  don't add up to me. And they don't add up because

         22  the commitment on the part of the Administration and

         23  your agency as a result is that we want to cut

         24  $177,000 from a program that is there to prevent

         25  children from going into your detention facilities.
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          2  And you are sitting there and telling me it cost

          3  $65,000 to have a child in a detention facility, and

          4  then you sit there and say, we take care of 300

          5  children in this program.

          6                 It seems to me, as of when you come

          7  up with this proposed budget, that I thought all

          8  along that when the agency proposed the budget, the

          9  budget that they proposed was the budget that was

         10  the most important budget for our City, the budget

         11  they wanted to pass, not a budget that is about

         12  playing games with you cut it and then we have to

         13  add it back. I didn't think that was the situation,

         14  but clearly that is what I am hearing. Not directly,

         15  but that is what I am hearing.

         16                 And I am quite disturbed by that

         17  notion. I am disturbed because it just doesn't add

         18  up. $177,000 doesn't add up. And I am sorry that I

         19  keep harping on that issue, but let's go to the next

         20  one.

         21                 Aftercare Program, can you tell me

         22  what the status of that is, with regard to your

         23  agency?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Sure. The

         25  Executive Budget includes the reduction of six
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          2  positions in that program.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And can you

          4  tell me how much in budget that is?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: It is

          6  somewhere in the range of $150,000.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I don't

          8  have to go through the numbers again?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: The

         10  numbers would be the same.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: You

         12  understand what I am saying, $65,000. Two and a half

         13  people being detained for one year. How many

         14  children go through this program every year?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: We

         16  serviced last year about 500.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, it is

         18  about $300,000 for both programs, and you serviced

         19  about 800 children, and as a result of cutting that

         20  money you can detain five more children.

         21                 What do you think the probability is

         22  that some of those children didn't attend one of

         23  these programs winds up back and you are detaining

         24  them again?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: That is a
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          2  speculative question, I really can't answer,

          3  Councilman.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I suspect

          5  the number is probably more than five. I suspect

          6  that if you look at this as a budget issue, we

          7  realize that it just doesn't make any sense.

          8                 I am looking at here a report from

          9  the Comptroller's Office, and they made some

         10  recommendations with regard to your Aftercare

         11  Program, are you familiar with the report?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Vaguely. I

         13  remember it came out in '94, '95.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Did you

         15  guys consider any of those recommendations?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: If I may,

         17  Councilman.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Sure.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I have some

         20  familiarity in the audit report that was released by

         21  the Comptroller's Office, and I want to put this in

         22  the proper context.

         23                 The Department of Juvenile Justice is

         24  a receiving agency that has the obligation to detain

         25  young people. That are better detained based on the
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          2  decision that is made by a judge, either Family

          3  Court Judge or Criminal Court Judge.

          4                 We are mandated to be able to provide

          5  detention services when those decisions are made by

          6  the Court system.

          7                 A lot of our costs are driven by

          8  mandates, what staffing we need to have, what

          9  capacity we need to have.

         10                 As Doug was indicating, when we went

         11  through our process of looking for cost reduction,

         12  we made a decision to be able to try to deal with

         13  them through some savings in our operational costs,

         14  but we do have fixed costs and very little

         15  flexibility around what we can put on the table for

         16  reduction. We made a decision to put RCV and

         17  Aftercare up for those reductions, and I would

         18  reiterate again that this is a proposal at this

         19  time, that the leadership of City Hall and the

         20  leadership of City Council will have to negotiate in

         21  a budget at a future time.

         22                 Moreover, I would add that I have

         23  expressed a very strong commitment to these

         24  programs. I understand that the City Council is very

         25  interested in them. One of the things I was able to
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          2  accomplish last year was I identified alternate

          3  funding for RCV, which as you know, we entered into

          4  collaboration with NYPD and New York City Housing

          5  Authority to be able to replicate this program

          6  within public housing in areas where we know we get

          7  a lot of admission so that we can intervene with

          8  young people and hopefully lead them to more

          9  productive lives rather than for them to wind up in

         10  detention.

         11                 Another thing that I had talked about

         12  or I had alluded to that we are about ready to do, I

         13  was able to leverage $700,000 per year for the next

         14  three years to be able to take a look at doing a

         15  replication, with some differences of our Aftercare

         16  Program.

         17                 At the time that I planned this, I

         18  was aware of the Comptroller's report, but after

         19  looking at the program, although I think it is a

         20  noble program, I thought there were some problems

         21  with the program that I am trying to correct with

         22  the $700,000 per year.

         23                 The biggest problem that I thought

         24  that we had was that we had no way of being able to

         25  integrate detention with Aftercare services in the
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          2  community.

          3                 So what I planned to do with the

          4  700,000 was to be able to take staff, integrate them

          5  within the detention setting, to identify young

          6  people that can benefit from Aftercare, or

          7  continuing services in the community, establish a

          8  rapport with them and trust and help them to

          9  transition from detention into a community-based

         10  after care model.

         11                 I also thought that it would be an

         12  opportunity to creatively create a system whereby we

         13  would have Aftercare staff working within detention,

         14  working with the transition of young people back

         15  into the community, to expand services Citywide, and

         16  then also to set up a model where we had a directly

         17  operated Aftercare Program, but also took some of

         18  the dollars to be able to contract out with

         19  community-based organizations. Then we would be in a

         20  position to more effectively transition people into

         21  Aftercare and then make decisions on whether they go

         22  into a directly-operated Aftercare Program by DJJ or

         23  community-based Aftercare Program operated by a

         24  community-based organization.

         25                 We then want to, our intent is then
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          2  to begin to take a look at the effectiveness of both

          3  models so that we can make some decisions about how

          4  Aftercare will look in the future.

          5                 We did leverage $700,000 per year to

          6  try this experimental model.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Just a minute,

          8  Council Member.

          9                 I acknowledge the presence of these

         10  young people from the Country Day School; is that

         11  correct?

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Manhattan

         13  Country School.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Manhattan

         15  Country School, who have come here this morning to

         16  hear how adults are dealing with public dollars as

         17  it pertains to how they will be taken care of within

         18  the City of New York.

         19                 They were here and they heard from

         20  the Youth Commissioner. Now Commissioner Hernandez

         21  is the Commissioner of the Department of Juvenile

         22  Justice, which takes in young people who have made

         23  wrong choices. And so we are discussing that now and

         24  I wanted to thank you for being here, and they gave

         25  us some testimony on the inside as to what their
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          2  insights are as to how they need to be directed or

          3  dealt with as young people in the City of New York.

          4                 I just wanted to acknowledge you and

          5  thank Council Member Lopez for bringing these young

          6  people here so they can see government up close.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 Now, Council Member, do you have

          9  another question?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Just a

         11  follow-up.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: All right,

         13  thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I heard

         15  what you said, and I just want you to keep vigilant

         16  to the fact that we have to really be aggressive and

         17  when we prepare budgets that include $60 million for

         18  new detention facilities, when we prepare new

         19  budgets for $6 million or whatever it is, to

         20  renovate Spofford, when we look at numbers like

         21  $65,000 to detain a child in, I guess in New York

         22  City, I guess it is about $80,000 upstate; is that

         23  accurate? Yes. When we look at those numbers, and we

         24  are having a budget hearing, I think it is important

         25  to note that the first thing we should look at is
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          2  keeping them out. And you are talking about

          3  $700,000, you are talking about $100,000, you are

          4  talking about $200,000, and if it was up to me, it

          5  would be five, ten-million, because the idea is to

          6  keep them from getting there in the first place.

          7                 I think that this Department has to

          8  make a commitment to making sure that the $300,000

          9  that was cut, the budget for these two programs,

         10  that serves 800 children, which in my opinion, and I

         11  am not a professional in juvenile justice in any

         12  way, probably will have an impact on many of those

         13  children and keep at least, at the very least, you

         14  know, five, ten or 15 or whatever it is out of

         15  there, that when all is said and done, and at the

         16  end of the day when we sit down and we look at the

         17  budget, that the more we spend on prevention and

         18  Aftercare, the less we have to spend on prevention,

         19  and when you do these budget cuts in the future, you

         20  don't have to sit there and worry about this many

         21  children coming in and you have to detain this many

         22  children.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you,

         25  Councilperson.
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          2                 Council Member Stabile.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Good morning,

          4  Commissioner. How are you? And to your staff.

          5                 I have some real problems here. I

          6  mean, when I first came aboard the City Council

          7  back in 1994, we were closing Spofford down,

          8  Spofford was a thing of the past, we were not going

          9  to use Spofford, it was antiquated, it needed too

         10  much repairs, it needed too much work done to it, it

         11  should not be used, it wasn't the right facility. So

         12  we went ahead under a plan that was in existence I

         13  don't know how long, to put two other facilities,

         14  one in Brooklyn and one in the Bronx, and we did

         15  that.

         16                 And, Madame Chair, we met, several

         17  times we visited these facilities and they are in

         18  the hearts of communities, one is in East New York,

         19  near Legion Street, the other one is in the South

         20  Bronx, I believe. And we visited them, very, very

         21  nice facilities, the look like prisons, they give

         22  that prison appearance, for anyone who says they

         23  don't is a damn liar.

         24                 I am not an advocate for saying the

         25  kids who commit the crimes and commit the murders
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          2  and do violent crimes to innocent people shouldn't

          3  be away or in prison or in these facilities. By all

          4  means.

          5                 My question is, when we looked at the

          6  enhancement of some of the programs, the Aftercare

          7  Programs, how could we cut programs that maybe are

          8  the link to keeping the potential person who we can

          9  straighten out, the potential lady or young man that

         10  we can help, why would we look to hurt that type of

         11  program? That would be the first question I am

         12  looking at.

         13                 The second thing is, why are we going

         14  back to Spofford and putting more money in Spofford

         15  that on testimony, back in 1994, said this was the

         16  worst facility for youth, it should not be enhanced?

         17  I went there, it reminded me, I think it was called

         18  Jacob's Ladder, that movie on TV, for the audience,

         19  that is what it reminded me of, the paint was

         20  peeling, it was terrible, it was not clean. That

         21  gives me like a sense of are we going backwards.

         22                 Now, we are talking 800, we are

         23  talking 300 a year approximately served at any given

         24  time, or 300 a year globally, the whole year?

         25                 Okay, now 100 some odd beds is the
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          2  one from the Brooklyn facility?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: The two

          4  facilities, the one in the Bronx, Horizon Detention

          5  Juvenile, and the Crossroads Juvenile Center, each

          6  have really 124 beds.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: One-hundred

          8  twenty-four beds. So you figure that is 240 beds,

          9  okay? So we are basically right around the number

         10  that we need. Why are we looking to expand Spofford?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Let me

         12  explain, Councilman.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Go ahead.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: The

         15  numbers we talked about earlier when Councilman

         16  Rodriguez referred to youth that are in our

         17  community-based programs. These are not youth that

         18  are in detention.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So what do we

         20  have in detention at any given time right now in the

         21  City of New York?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Right now

         23  in secure detention this fiscal year we have

         24  averaged a little over 330 on any given day.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.
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          2                 And Spofford you believe is the

          3  answer of adding another 100 beds there?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Well,

          5  Councilperson, if we have 248 and we have a

          6  population of -- in those two, and then we have a

          7  population of 330, that does leave us a gap of

          8  around 90.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, what

         10  about the disaster, how bad it was previously? And I

         11  address you, Commissioner, because I was there. It

         12  wasn't something I read in a book. It was something

         13  that was told to me. That place was a dump. The

         14  place was not maintained. And I am not going to

         15  blame this Administration for that because it took

         16  many years of decay to get that bad, okay? But we

         17  are beyond blaming people or blaming an

         18  administration. We want to service the youth that

         19  need the help, get the youth who are the real

         20  problem youth who are corrupting other youth off the

         21  street. I can't see cutting this agency for the

         22  simple reason of we need more help in this agency.

         23                 The counseling, are we looking to cut

         24  any counselors this coming fiscal year?

         25                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Councilman,
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          2  let me kind of do a quick history.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Go ahead.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I have been

          5  Commissioner I believe 16 months in the agency. I

          6  moved over at the time when the two facilities that

          7  were planned were ready to be completed and opened.

          8                 The decision to build the community

          9  facilities was a decision that was made three

         10  administrations ago at a time when the world was a

         11  bit different.

         12                 For a variety of political

         13  community-related issues, concerns, maybe even some

         14  philosophical concerns, a decision was made to build

         15  two facilities to replace Spofford at a lower

         16  capacity than we had at Spofford. At Spofford we had

         17  a capacity of 290, with the ability to go up with a

         18  variance from the State Office of Children and

         19  Family Services, which was then called DFY, to go up

         20  to 320. The two facilities combined give us the

         21  capacity of 248. So, my most immediate problem

         22  coming in is that I had less capacity than I had

         23  population.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Can I just

         25  stop you on that for a second.
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          2                 Why in name of the dear Lord up in

          3  Heaven did we build a facility undersized to begin

          4  with to replace a facility that was oversized?

          5                 Why did we spend that much money then

          6  if that was what -- why did we go to the point of

          7  spending so much money to build two facilities if

          8  they weren't even built to the size of the facility

          9  that we were replacing?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Councilman, I

         11  will not second guess the decision. The decision was

         12  a decision that was made three administrations ago,

         13  and I had a serious operational problem to deal with

         14  when I arrived. I was well aware of the history of

         15  Spofford. I took great pains to take a look at the

         16  entire history at Spofford dating back to the day

         17  that it opened, understood there had been serious

         18  problems which were probably categorized into two

         19  areas. One had to do with the quality of care of the

         20  children that were in custody, it was a different

         21  facility then, it also included PINS and run-aways,

         22  different than the population now. We do not have

         23  PINS in our system.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: You do not

         25  have PINS in your system. Thank you.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: No.

          3                 And then the other set of problems

          4  had to do with, as you indicated, the disrepair of

          5  the facility.

          6                 I made a rather controversial

          7  decision at that time, because of capacity needs, to

          8  lease the Vernon C. Bain correctional facility from

          9  the Department of Correction for a period of time. I

         10  made it very clear that I was going to use it as an

         11  intake facility until I solved the capacity problem.

         12                 After reviewing the physical plant at

         13  Spofford, I made some decisions that we would only

         14  use three wings, which are the lower wings at

         15  Spofford, and that we would -- I went to the Mayor

         16  and the Mayor gave us $7 million to be able to do a

         17  renovation of those three wings. That figure has

         18  gone up now to $7.7 million so that we can do a

         19  renovation and we are going to do some improvements

         20  within those three wings.

         21                 This is a temporary measure, a

         22  short-term solution, until I was able to take a look

         23  at being able to do an expansion of the two

         24  facilities, and I have the Department of Design and

         25  Construction conducting a feasibility study to see
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          2  if we can make up lost capacity within those two

          3  facilities. So that is the plan as of this point.

          4                 I made a commitment also that I would

          5  move out of Vernon C. Bain because it was

          6  controversial and I was sympathetic to some of the

          7  concerns that people had and advocates had and the

          8  City Council had. Which by the way, have not come to

          9  fruition. I made a commitment that I would keep it

         10  at 100 beds, we have kept it at 100 beds. We have

         11  made a commitment that we use it as an intake

         12  center, we have done that.

         13                 We made the commitment that we would

         14  only hold state-readys there that were going to be

         15  transferred to the State facilities which we have

         16  done. So we made various commitments, and the other

         17  commitment that I made would be that it would be a

         18  temporary stay at Vernon C. Bain.

         19                 I am trying to correct problems and

         20  policy decisions that were made three

         21  administrations ago.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: My last

         23  question. On the facility. On the facility, let's

         24  take the Brooklyn facility, when you look at that

         25  facility, don't you see a tremendous amount of space
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          2  totally wasted in that facility that could have been

          3  used for other if we were thinking of rebuilding or

          4  making something? I mean, I walked into, I guess it

          5  was the cafeteria or the gymnasium, they had this

          6  beautiful furniture that they had at the time, and

          7  then you had a schoolyard, I guess you would call it

          8  a recreation yard outside, and it just dawned on me,

          9  like why didn't they build another room, or an

         10  atrium type of room out there which could be secured

         11  and also give the appearance of being outdoors in

         12  all types of inclement weather and still have places

         13  to put more young people who are in trouble?

         14                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Councilman, I

         15  agree with you. Part of what I was indicating is we

         16  have the Department of Design and Construction

         17  looking at design possibilities to be able to expand

         18  the two facilities within the perimeter of the two

         19  facilities because we do have some added space

         20  there, yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: We did have

         22  that discussion at some point in time, Commissioner.

         23  Are they currently looking at that? Or have they

         24  said that that is not feasible? What is the status

         25  of that? I didn't quite hear you give a resolution
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          2  to that.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: The

          4  Department of Design and Construction has come up

          5  with some feasibility options on how to do that

          6  expansion. I will be getting a briefing, probably

          7  within a couple of weeks. They believe it is

          8  feasible to do an expansion of the facility, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: All right. Then

         10  with that being in mind, Commissioner, you are

         11  saying to me, based on your testimony, we are

         12  getting ready to spend, how much money is it to

         13  expand, to renovate Spofford? How much?

         14                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: $7.7 million.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: $7.7 million,

         16  and we are currently reviewing the possibility of

         17  expanding space within the existing two facilities

         18  that we have.

         19                 And then after we find that we can do

         20  that, and we do that, that means that we are going

         21  to spend more money to put this expanded facility

         22  there, and we would put in $7.7 million in Spofford,

         23  it doesn't compute for me. It does not compute. Then

         24  what do we do with Spofford then? Then what do we do

         25  with Spofford? It is not computing for me today.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: When I made

          3  the decision or was looking at the option of

          4  returning to Spofford, I knew there was a community

          5  concern regarding the use of Spofford.

          6                 At the time there was a grand plan

          7  for the community to use Spofford as a community

          8  center, a community youth center.

          9                 When I went to the Mayor I indicated

         10  to them that they had a plan to do this, which I

         11  thought was noble, but unrealistic because of the

         12  capital money that would have to be expended to be

         13  able to convert Spofford into a youth center. Plus I

         14  thought that the site was too large.

         15                 After talking with elected officials,

         16  community leaders in that area, I went back to the

         17  Mayor and indicated and made a recommendation that

         18  in compensation for a return to Spofford that we

         19  should give the community a youth center. The Mayor

         20  agreed, I believe it is in the budget. There is 4.4

         21  million to build a brand new youth community center

         22  in that area for that community.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Council Member

         24  Clarke.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

          2  Madame Chair.

          3                 Commissioner, I have two relevant

          4  questions, and they have to do with the Subcommittee

          5  that I chair on Mental Health.

          6                 I have in the process going a hearing

          7  that will look at foster care youth and mental

          8  Health And I see in your testimony on page three you

          9  talk about an interagency collaboration that targets

         10  foster care youth with low level charges.

         11                 If you will explain to us who are you

         12  collaborating with, how is this collaboration taking

         13  place, and what do you intend to do, what the

         14  programmatic dollars will look like and who will

         15  administer that is the first thing I would like to

         16  have some explanation on.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: One of the

         18  things the City Council has encouraged us to do,

         19  which I agree with, which we have taken great pains

         20  to do over the course of the year is to really begin

         21  to analyze our population, to really come up with

         22  ways of being able to make determination on the

         23  appropriateness of detention for the population.

         24                 At any given time we have a

         25  coexistence of young people that need to be in
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          2  detention because we need to protect public safety.

          3  Young people that have committed crimes that are

          4  awaiting adjudication.

          5                 On the other hand, as we began to

          6  look at the population we saw there was systemic

          7  improvements that we could make that would help us

          8  to be able to move young people out of detention

          9  that ought not be in detention.

         10                 In this instance, Project Confirm is

         11  a collaboration that we did with the Administration

         12  of Children's Services, as well as with the Vera

         13  Institute. One of the things that we learned from

         14  data collection was that we would have kids that

         15  were really in the custody of ACS, that were

         16  committing lower level crimes that were languishing

         17  in detention because of a failure of a guardian or

         18  foster care program to show up in court so that a

         19  judge could make a determination that this young

         20  person had a place to go, rather than detention.

         21                 We piloted a project called Project

         22  Confirm, which we feel enthusiastic about, which is

         23  resulting really in ACS making it very clear to

         24  their community-based organizations that they have a

         25  responsibility to get either a foster care program
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          2  or identify a guardian that can be at court when a

          3  young person appears at court.

          4                 In those instances, those young

          5  people are being now released more frequently back

          6  to the community, rather than to remain in

          7  detention.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, followed

          9  by my question of the grant for $400,000 to provide

         10  mental health services. Can you describe to me then

         11  what that program will be and what role DMH might be

         12  playing in that and if GMH does not have a role to

         13  play, who will provide that mental health services

         14  and who will do the case management and follow

         15  through once the young person leaves detention.

         16                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: One of the

         17  priorities that I have made at the agency was to do

         18  a thorough review of all of the mandated services

         19  that DJJ is expected to provide in detention, which

         20  include case management, include health services,

         21  mental health services, recreation and education.

         22                 One of the first things that I did

         23  was I made a decision that rather than for DJJ to

         24  offer education services, which I thought we were

         25  trying to do to the best of our ability, but we were
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          2  having tremendous problems mainstreaming young

          3  people back into the education system once they

          4  left, I talked to the Chancellor and the Chancellor

          5  agreed to operate our schools within detention

          6  facilities.

          7                 We then began to look at mental

          8  health services and health services. We have a

          9  health provider that provides both health and mental

         10  health services, and one of the things that I feel

         11  very strongly about philosophically is that we have

         12  to do a couple of things other than just primary

         13  care.

         14                 In the area of health we were able to

         15  leverage some federal funds, and what we want to do

         16  is integrate in a very complimentary way a program

         17  that would compliment the primary care that we

         18  provide, but then also provide educational services,

         19  counseling around what I call health promotion and

         20  disease prevention, being able to talk to young

         21  people about illnesses that can impact them

         22  adversely, talk to them about such things as STDs,

         23  HIV prevention, to be able to talk about sexuality,

         24  to be able to talk about things that are important

         25  to them.
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          2                 I strongly believe that you have to

          3  also educate young people about the health risks

          4  that exist. Part of that would also be talking to

          5  them about substance abuse and the risk of using

          6  drugs, in the community, in correlation between drug

          7  use and criminal behavior.

          8                 On the mental health side, I felt

          9  that it was important that we begin to take a look

         10  at identifying young people that may have some

         11  difficulty with either past victimization, or that

         12  have been traumatized in some kind of way, and also

         13  to begin to develop some programs dealing with

         14  violence and being able to find constructive ways of

         15  being able to deal with anger management.

         16                 We will be looking to do this over

         17  the summer. They will be integrated within our

         18  disciplinary team, within the facility. They will

         19  also be conducting educational workshops around

         20  issues of mental health, behavioral problems, issues

         21  around trauma and victimization and then we will be

         22  providing ongoing group and individual counseling.

         23                 What I would be willing to work with

         24  you, because I know this is an important issue with

         25  you because one of the impediments that we do still
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          2  face that I am trying to resolve, is that we have a

          3  small number of young people within our system that

          4  do have serious mental illness. And one of the

          5  things that we are prepared to talk to the

          6  Department of Health about is to find ways of being

          7  able to have them access appropriate psychiatric

          8  care.

          9                 We do have the Department of Mental

         10  Health working with us. They have a contractor that

         11  is within detention now that does assessments and

         12  referrals to community-based agencies for mental

         13  health services, but I certainly would be willing to

         14  work with you on mental health issues because that

         15  is an area of great importance to the agency.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I am even more

         17  concerned about the follow through and the case

         18  management, even if the youngster is not seriously

         19  or persistently mentally ill. But when that young

         20  person goes back to the community, that there is a

         21  link in that community which says you provided some

         22  mental health care, and I am always concerned, if

         23  not suspicious, about these contractors who get

         24  these big dollars, do some work, and then when I

         25  look at the case record, as I often do when I visit
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          2  a place, which says they are there and they do very

          3  little work for the money they get, and therefore

          4  the young person falls between the cracks once they

          5  leave because there is no further outreach.  And for

          6  the seriously and persistently mentally ill, I am

          7  going to seek through this Committee, since I serve

          8  on both, to link this with the Department of Mental

          9  Health on the services that I expect them to provide

         10  for young people.

         11                 But my final question, Madame Chair,

         12  is on this $700,000. I see you saved the same amount

         13  in overtime and I see you got a grant for the same

         14  amount; is this program similar to what we first

         15  called Family Ties when I came to the City Council,

         16  and which name somehow this Administration didn't

         17  like, because if you are doing these initiatives to

         18  bring youngsters back to the community, I would like

         19  to know how will their family members be

         20  incorporated in what you do so that when they get

         21  back to the community they get back as a whole

         22  person.

         23                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We have two

         24  pots of money that really impact on the Aftercare

         25  Program, let me reiterate very quickly, when I
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          2  started the plan for the $700,000 what I was looking

          3  to do.

          4                 We have an Aftercare Program that

          5  provides a very good service at reintegrating young

          6  people back into the community once they leave

          7  detention. The problem that I had with the program

          8  was that young people in detention were just giving

          9  the number and told about Aftercare programs and

         10  then when they returned to the community, they may

         11  choose to call or may not call for ongoing services.

         12                 So, what I was proposing to do with

         13  the $700,000 that we are getting on a yearly basis

         14  is federal funds, was to integrate Aftercare staff

         15  within detention to begin working with young people

         16  while they are in detention, to establish a rapport

         17  with them, a relationship with them, to really help

         18  them to bridge them into Aftercare once they leave

         19  detention.

         20                 We then wanted to set up a model that

         21  would look at having expanded Aftercare services or

         22  continuing care services within the City and have a

         23  model where we have directed operated Aftercare and

         24  also identify community-based organizations that can

         25  provide Aftercare services for our young people, so
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          2  that we would then have someone that would have a

          3  contract that we can refer to so that they can case

          4  manage the young person and make sure that they are

          5  accessing the services that they need.

          6                 In addition to that we got a federal

          7  grant for $125,000 to incorporate a family

          8  component, to be able to do mediation counseling, to

          9  do education for family members within the Aftercare

         10  Program as well.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         12  much. Thank you, Madame Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you very

         14  much, Commissioner, for your responses.

         15                 Council Member Perkins, and then I

         16  will call Council Member Lopez, and I would like to

         17  acknowledge the presence of Christine Quinn from

         18  Manhattan.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

         20  Madame Chair.

         21                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         22                 I want to run past a few things real

         23  quickly. You apparently have a high absentee rate

         24  and you are in the process of trying to address

         25  that. Can you explain why you have such a high
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          2  absentee rate?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I will

          4  preface the response and then I will ask Doug to

          5  respond to it.

          6                 The primary problem that I believe we

          7  had when I first arrived at the agency was that we

          8  were down a lot of staff. We have mandated ratios.

          9  We have to have one JC for every eight young people

         10  that we have in the system. I arrived, and quite

         11  candidly, where we didn't have enough staff. We had

         12  staff that were working double, triple shifts, which

         13  I think also results in people just becoming tired

         14  and just not being able to come to work. We did a

         15  massive hiring recruitment process, I believe hired

         16  somewhere of 268 people in a period of really under

         17  a year and now our direct child care staff, I think

         18  we have one percent vacancy rate. So we have done a

         19  tremendous job being able to hire.

         20                 In addition to that we have taken

         21  other measures to try to deal -- because absenteeism

         22  is also another concern and we want to just take

         23  another level, we wanted to be able to take it to

         24  another level and not be able to deal with it and I

         25  will let Doug talk about that.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Sort of

          3  picking up where the Commissioner left off, once you

          4  get to a full staffing level, you then have to

          5  monitor their use of leave, primarily sick leave.

          6                 We have implemented a series of new

          7  policies around absence control, we have increased

          8  our staffing in our discipline unit to closely

          9  monitor those staff that have serious and egregious

         10  absence issues, I will tell you, Councilman, that is

         11  actually a very small percentage of our staff. We

         12  have a tremendously dedicated staff who work

         13  tremendously hard and well with our residents in a

         14  very difficult job. But there is a small percentage,

         15  as in any workforce, that really do have serious

         16  absence problems.

         17                 What we have been able to accomplish

         18  this year I think is pretty impressive. We have

         19  reduced our absence rate by over 20 percent in sick

         20  leave, which at least in my experience in government

         21  is pretty difficult to achieve. I think the

         22  combination of having new staff, holding staff

         23  accountable, I am trying to provide staff with more

         24  support, has really made a difference and I think

         25  you see that in our absence rates going down, our
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          2  overtime going down, and hopefully staff morale

          3  going up.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me move

          5  forward quickly. Going back to non-secure

          6  detentions, I just wanted to ask a few quick

          7  questions on that.

          8                 What is the present status of your

          9  request for proposal process.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ:  Well, again,

         11  if I may, when I arrived at the agency we were down

         12  three contracts, three contracts that were not

         13  approved because of impropriety. We made a decision

         14  to bring those three contracts on line some time

         15  ago. We then made a decision and I had made a

         16  commitment that I would continue to look at

         17  non-secure detention to see if we needed to expand

         18  capacity. Again, went to City Hall and indicated

         19  that I needed to do an expansion and received

         20  another $3 million. We are using what is called an

         21  expedited procurement process.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: An expedited?

         23                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes,

         24  procurement process. It is a way within the

         25  procurement rules to be able to try to expedite our
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          2  identification of this based on need.

          3                 We currently have proposals that are

          4  being reviewed and I would believe that we would

          5  probably be making decisions about the contractors

          6  probably within the next couple of weeks.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, just

          8  quickly if I could, we would like to receive a copy

          9  of the RFP.

         10                 And lastly, who monitors the

         11  non-secure detention facility?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We have a

         13  staff compliment within the detention Operations

         14  Division that oversees all non-secure detention

         15  facilities in all of the contracts. We have a

         16  Director, an Executive Director, that oversees that

         17  area, as well as additional staff.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And do you

         19  keep track of the violent incidents that might be

         20  taking place at these facilities?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We track

         22  incidents in all of our facilities, including

         23  contracted facilities, yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do you have

         25  records of any incidence of violence in these
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          2  facilities?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We track

          4  them. I don't have the information on hand.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I have some

          6  concern, as you can imagine, about that, and I just

          7  was wondering if you have any records that you could

          8  share with us with regard to the violent incidents

          9  that may be taking place.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Right. I

         11  would say that as I look at the data, we have very,

         12  very little violent incidents in non-secure

         13  detention. We have a situation where we have staff

         14  that visit them on a regular basis, we have

         15  developed indicators and certain expectations that

         16  they have by regulations of things that they have to

         17  report to us, but we have staff on site.

         18                 I have no recollection of any violent

         19  incident, I would kind of have to go back and take a

         20  look.

         21                 I would also remind you, the people

         22  in non-secure detention are there usually because

         23  they are JDs and they have lower charges. You don't

         24  generally get people in non-secure detention that

         25  have a history of violence.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Very good.

          3  So, if you can give us any documentation on those

          4  types of incidents, it would be helpful.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I do believe

          6  also we had sent you the solicitation, but I will

          7  make sure that you get a copy of that again.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you very

         10  much, Council Member Perkins.

         11                 Do you have an evaluation of the

         12  group homes that were up and operating before? Do

         13  you provide evaluations for group homes or

         14  non-secure detention facilities?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We are

         16  required to monitor them on a regular basis, their

         17  reports that they have to provide to us. We are

         18  looking at our contracting procedures to see if we

         19  can make them more outcome performance-based. We

         20  have staff there all of the time that look at the

         21  services, look at the physical plant, look at the

         22  quality of care.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Can you share

         24  that with us? Can you share with us the evaluations

         25  of those facilities?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: If by

          3  evaluation, do you mean like do we have a formal

          4  like evaluation?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Yes, that's

          6  correct.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We do

          8  performance reviews, which is different than an

          9  evaluation.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Could I see the

         11  performance reviews? Could you share that with this

         12  Committee, please? The performance reviews of those

         13  non-secure facilities that are already existing?

         14                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We will look

         15  at the instruments we use, we will see if we can

         16  provide those to you, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 The other thing I would like to know,

         20  what is your current population today in the two

         21  facilities? And the people that are on the barge as

         22  well?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MONJE: Good

         24  morning, Councilwoman.

         25                 We have at the Horizon facility today
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          2  148 and at Crossroads 146. At the VCBC we have 94.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Ninety-four?

          4  Thank you.

          5                 Council Member Lopez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am sorry, can

          7  you repeat those numbers? I think I am a little

          8  confused about what you just said.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MONJE: Horizon

         10  148, Crossroads 146, and VCBC 94.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         12                 I am interested in knowing about the

         13  non-secure detention capacities that you have, and

         14  according to the proposal that you have, 36 new beds

         15  are going to be open. Now, when you go to open 36

         16  new beds, where are you planning to open these beds.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member,

         18  hold on a second.

         19                 Can we get some quiet in the back of

         20  the house? If you have conversations, would you

         21  please take them outside? Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Where are you

         23  planning to open these beds?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Councilwoman,

         25  we released a Citywide expedited solicitation and we
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          2  have proposals that were submitted to us from

          3  various organizations throughout the City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But the

          5  location is what I want to know. What is the

          6  projected location that you have for this bed?

          7  Because the population that you get, the majority

          8  come from the Bronx, Brooklyn and Lower Manhattan,

          9  then I want to know where is the location that you

         10  plan to locate these beds?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: That would be

         12  predicated upon -- we don't have any geographic

         13  target that we have on where the facility would be.

         14  The decision will be predicated really on the

         15  capability of the organization that submitted the

         16  proposal, whether they have a site, whether that

         17  site will be able to conform or meet whatever OCFS

         18  requirements we have so that the decisions are made

         19  basically in that way.

         20                 Obviously one of the things I will

         21  also look at is, you know, having some kind of

         22  parity across the system, as we make the decisions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Why did you

         24  decide to open 36 new beds now?

         25                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: One of the
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          2  things that I have been trying to do and I made a

          3  commitment to do was to really try to come up with

          4  an optimal level of secure and non-secure detention

          5  facilities.

          6                 As I indicated when I arrived, the

          7  capacity, I believe, was at 59 because the agency

          8  had chosen not to renew contracts with agencies that

          9  we were having problems with. We moved very quickly

         10  to bring that capacity to 115 by issuing three new

         11  contracts. We continued to monitor non-secure

         12  detention and secure detention and made a decision

         13  that we thought we should have additional capacity

         14  in non-secure detention.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But why that

         16  determination?  That the Department concluded that

         17  you were sending too many juveniles to secure

         18  detention, and that is the reason you now are

         19  opening 36 new beds?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We are

         21  opening it because we need to have the flexibility

         22  to be able to meet remands that are made by the

         23  court, and some instances we have courts that make

         24  remands to secure detention, and some instances they

         25  make remands to non-secure detention, and in some
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          2  instances they do open remands, and if we had the

          3  capacity in both secure and non-secure detention, it

          4  gives us the flexibility to make a determination

          5  where a young person will best be suited.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Again, I have

          7  to infer from that that right now you don't have the

          8  capacity to send young people to non-secure

          9  detention, therefore due to the lack of that, many

         10  young people who should not be in secure detention

         11  are being sent to secure detention because you don't

         12  have the capacity for the non-secure and they are

         13  detained, in my opinion, if that is the case,

         14  because there is not sufficient non-secure, they are

         15  detained in secure detention against their

         16  constitutional rights.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL:

         18  Councilwoman, as the Commissioner said, that judges

         19  make decisions where to house a resident based upon

         20  its status of remand. We then move that youth into

         21  the appropriate location.

         22                 As of today, every youth who has a

         23  non-secure detention remand, specifically ordered by

         24  a judge, is in a non-secure detention bed.

         25                 What the Commissioner is sort of
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          2  saying is that these additional beds will give us

          3  really (a) additional flexibility to manage the

          4  system, to move kids that are in secure into

          5  non-secure, and (b) also give us more options in

          6  terms of how we appropriately house residents.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Madame Chair, I

          8  think we should look into this question of children

          9  that continue to be contained in facilities that are

         10  secure detention when they belong in there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Council Member,

         12  I just would like to share with you that we had that

         13  discussion with Commissioner Hernandez in regard to

         14  we expressed to him how very strongly we felt about

         15  children being detained that should be in non-secure

         16  facilities.

         17                 You should also be aware that there

         18  is a lawsuit that says that children have to come

         19  out of those facilities and be placed where they are

         20  supposed to be placed, so you should be aware of

         21  that as well.

         22                 So I think that concludes the

         23  question, for those persons that have that question.

         24                 Council Member Leffler, did you have

         25  any questions?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Council Member

          4  Quinn?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: All right then.

          7                 Council Member.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Commissioner,

          9  thank you for your testimony. This portion of the

         10  hearing is in recess. We will now proceed

         11  immediately to the Department of Employment, which

         12  will be done jointly with the Committee on General

         13  Welfare. We will do the summer part of that first,

         14  and then into the balance of the testimony.

         15                 So, we are going to take about a 30

         16  second recess, or however long it takes to get

         17  Commissioner Pagan, and alert Council Member

         18  DiBrienza.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you,

         20  Chairman, Chairwoman.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 11:30 a.m.)

         22
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